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Board of Governors ofthe Federal Reserve System

Annua Report of Ho ding Companies-FR Y-G

Report at the close of business as ofthe end offiscal year

This Report is required by law: Section S(cX1XA) of the Bank
Holding Company Ad(12 U.S.C. S 18a(cX1XA)); sect'rons 8(a)
and 13(a) of the lnternational Banking Act (12 U.S-C. SS 3106(a)
and 3108(a)); sections 11(a[1), 25. and 25A of the Federal
Reserve Act (12 U.S.C. $$ 2a8(a)(1} 602, and 61'la); and sec-
tions 113, 165,312, 618, and 809 of the DoddfrankAct(12 U.S.C.
SS 5361, s365, 5412, 1850a(c[1), and 5468(b[1)). Return to the
appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the original and the number of
copies specifierl,

This report form is to be filed by all toptier bank holding cornpa-
nies, toptier savings and loan holding companies, and U.S. inter-
mediate holding companies organized under U S. law, and by
any foreign bankirq organization that does not meet the require.
ments of and is nol treated as a qualifying foreign banUng orga-
nization under Section 211.23 oI Regulation K (12 C.F.R. S
211.23). (See page one of the general instructions for more detail
of who must file.) The Federal Reserve may not conduct or spon-
sor, and an organization (or a person) is not required to respond
to, an information collection unless it displays a cunently valid
OMB control number.

NOTE: The Annual RepotT of Holding Companrbs must be signed by
one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual should
also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. ln the event
that the top-tier holding company does not have an individual who is
a senior official and is also a direclor, the chairman of the board must
sign the report. lf the holding company is an ESOP/ESOT formed as
a corporation or is an LLC, see the General lnstructions for the
authorized individual who must sign the report.
t, Ricardo Velazquez
Nru of lh! Hddng Cornp€rry DiEctor ard Omcial

Ghief Executive Officer
TrUe ol tlE Ho6hg Corrpany DirEctor and Oficial

attest that lhe Annual Report of Holding Companies (includlng
the supportirqg attachments) for this report date has been pre^
pared in conformance with th€ instructions hsued by the Federal
Resewe System and are trile and conect to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

With respect to infomation regarding individuals contained in this
repod, lhe Reporler cerlifies that it has the aulhorily to provide lhis
inlormation to lhe Federal Resele The Repoder also ceilifies
lhal I has the authotity, on behalf of each individual, lo consent or
object to public rdease of information ragarding thal individual.
The Federal Reserve may assume, in the absence of a rcquesl for

Dat€ of Report (top-tier hoiding company's fiscal year-end):

December 31,2016
M h/Oay/Year

N
R rls's Legal Entity ldenlifier (LEl) (2o-Characls LEI Cod€)

Re orle/s Name, Street, and Mailing Address

Ba orte USA Cor oration
L I Tdle ot Holdlng Compsrry

18 lS2ndStreet
(Msiliftg Addls or lh€ Holding Comp€ry)Stroel / PO. BoI

McAllen TX 7503
crv sEte zlqcode

140 E 45th St. New York, NY, 10017
Physical Lo€tion (if differeot from roillng addr*s)

Person to whom quesuons about this report should be directed:
Sonia Altamirano Treasury Manager
Name Tide

956$644410
treatment submitted in accordance wilh the Board's Arca Code / Phore Nmbs/ Erlenslon

956-632-5866?u/es of lnformation," 12 C.F.R. Pad 261,
consenl to public release of all Area code / FAx i,lurbs

that individual. saltamirano@in bweb.com

Diredor ard Official

E-mailAddr6s

N/A
71201 Address (URL) for th€ Holdlng Comparry's reb paga

DatE oI

For Federal Res€rve Bank Use Only

RssD rD L.tN bt-l
c-1.

PL6tc cpdting burdm tor this infuid olccrion is EIrctsd lo vary ltm 1 3 to 101 hm pa r6pm*. with sn ffiga ol5,5O hom ps EpoE, hdudkE Dm to gsthq ad
minlCn dal, ln the tlquirad fom qd lo Hlil inslndiffi ond Erpleis fio ffimfpn cdlrtiff S6d ffia& rEg€rduE ,ri! b{rda 6tEae a ny olt€r 8sp€Et d thb ol3cdm ol
infmotioo. indudlng $gg6dioE fq Ed$hg Dlh budq b: S6.l!ry, Bod ol Gffim of th. Federd R6em SyBt€o. 20tt s$ C St €€rs, NW Wsshington, OC 20551. ad io Drc
Olie ol Muigffit snd Budgst. Papsrqk R.ducrim PEicc, Otm{297). W6hhgtof,. DC 2OSO3. 1iJ;lO16

For holding companies @tregistered with lhe SEC-
lndicate status of Annu6l Report to Sharehol(Ers:

E ls incluoeO wlth the FR Y6 report

El *iu u. sent un(ts{ separate cover
E is not prepareo

0rl,lo

0
ls conlldentlal featsrrent requested tor any portion

ln accordance with tho G€neral lnstruclions {or thls report
(check orly dl€),

1. 6 letter justifying thls request ls belng provlded along
wlth the report -...........

2. a letterlustirfying this requast has been provided
separaGly,,....,

NOTE: lnfo]mauon tor wfticrr conlidentlal teatment ls belng
requested must ba provided s+aratdy and labelod
as'confi&ntlal,"

ot thfr3 report submlssion?..
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For Use By Tiered Holding Companies
Topliered holding nmpanies musl ,rsl fr,e names, mailing address, and physiel bcations of each ol their subsidiary holding oompanies
below.

INB Financlal
L€gal IIle of Sub8ldlary HoElng Company

1801 S 2nd Street

Legal Tl0e of Subsldlary Holding Cornpany

(Malllng AddrHs of the SubsldEry Holdlng Cornpany) sfBet / P.o. Box

McAllen TX 78503
City State z|p Codo

(MailingAddrces of tfie Subsidbry HoldirB Cornpany) SUeeti P.O. Box

Clty State Zpcode.

Ptrysical Locat/on (lf dlftrent from malllng addnss) PhFhel Locaton (f difrrEnttDm rlallirU address)

L€gal Il{6 of Sub€ldlary HoHlng Company LegalTlde of Sr$sHlary HoHing Corpany

(MaUlng AddrEsB o, the SubBldlary Holdlng Company) SE€€t / P.O. Box (MalllngAddmee of th6 Sub6ldlary Holdlng Company) Strcet/ P.O. Box

Clty Stata Zlp Code Stats Zp CodeClty

Ptryslcal Location (lf dtffersnt hom rnalllng addr6ss) Physlcal Locatlon (lf dlfiEront from rnalllrp .ddr6s)

Legal TUo of SubaHiary HoHlng Company LegalTlte of Subsldary HoHlrE Company

(MalllngMdr€s8 of lhe Subsldlary Holdlng Gfirpany) StsEot/ P.O. Box (lilafllng Addrcs d the Subsidlary Holdlng Conpany) Stet / P.O. Box

City SbtB Clty SEtEZp Oode Zp Code

Physlcal Lo6ton (if dlfferBnt from rnatllng address) Physlcal Loca0on (lf dlfttunt from malllng addrsss)

Legal Tlde of SuLsldlary Holdlng Cornpeny Leoal Title of Sub6ldlary Holdlng Company

(Malllng Addrcss of the Subsldlary Holdlng Company) Sueet / P.O. Box (Malllng AddrB$ of he Subsldhry Holdlng Company) Steet / P.O. Box

Clty StsE Zp Code Sbl€ Zp CodeClty

Physlcal Locaton (lf dlffEr€nt from malllng eddr€33) Phydcel Locaton (if difrBnt fiDln ntalllng addr€ss)
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PnvNp & Snnrrn, LLC
Certifi ed Publ ic Accountants

I ndependenl A udilot's Repo rt

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder
of Banorte USA Corporation and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated hnancial statements of Banorte USA Corporation and Subsidiaries which
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes in shareholder's equity and cash flows for the years then ended and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statemen ts

Management is responsible for the preparalion and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and

maintenance ofintemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation ofconsolidated linancial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based upon our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perlomr the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgmen! including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the

auditor considers internal control relevant to the organization's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures thal are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose ofexpressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness ofsignificant accounting estimates made by
managemenl" as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe consolidated financial statements.

We believe thal the audit evidence we have obtained is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements refened to above present fairly. in all material respects, the financial
position of Banorte USA Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of their operations and

their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Emphasis of Matter

As more fully discussed in Note I to the hnancial statements, the Company has entered into an agreement to sell 100% of the
outstanding common stock of its wholly owned banking subsidiary. The sale is expected to close during the first or secorrd
quarter ol20l7. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the eflbcts of this sale.

s

,4V.*

5952 Royal L^ane. Suite 158. Dallas, Tx 75230.214 1363-9927. Fax 214 / 363-980

-l-

March l. 2017



ASSETS

Currcnt rsscb

Cash and cash equivalents

Wire transfers receivable

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total c[rront asscts

Property, pletrt & equipmcng tret

Other essctr

Goodwill

Intangible assets, net

Other asseB

Totrl othtr assct

Acact! of benk hcld for salc

Total essets

LIABILTTIES AND STI,AREHOLDER'S EOUITY

Currcnt liabilitics

Agent deposits

Lrne of credit

Unsettled wire transactions

Due to paying agents

Federal income ux payable

Accrued interest payable

Accrued expenses and other cuvrent liabilities

Totrl currcot liabilities

Lotrg-tcrm liabilities

Deferred income tax payable

Other long-term liabil ities

Subord inated debentures

Payable to Banco Mcrcantil

Totr! loug-tcrm llabllitics

Liabilities of bank held for sale

Total llabilitles

Commituents and contingenciar

Shrreholder's equity

Common stoclq $l par value;

1,000 shares isued and outstanding

Addirional paid-in capiul

(Accumulated defi cit) rctained eamings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Totrl shrrcholdcrrr cquity

Tota! lirbilities end shrreholdcr's cquity

Brnortc USA Corpontioo end Subsidiericc

Consol idated Balance Sheets

December 3 l, 2016 and 2015

(in thousands, excgpt share amounts)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

23,4U

r-616213

24,079

I 746 093

$ l5rs,26l $ r,796,534

2016 20t 5

$ 31,142

6,315

3,613

23t

41.321

$ t5,754

3,798

3.172

'r'ro

2295f

4,223 3,409

19,091

1,177

t-805

I 9,097

1,098

3289

$ I6,905

5,t07

3,069

4,530

150

3-074

32 835

$ E.674

3,350

1,879

t,706
'il9
r28

3-638

20_o94

1,342

2,120

20.562

2-s00

r,094

1,057

20,5s9

2-500

26,524

1 _3s6_809

25,220

t-298_645

I 4r5 168 r 143 9s9

I

37t,3 r I

(96,302)

(5-917)

I

371,3 t I

81,034
(s-7? I )

269_O93 452.s'ts

$ 1.7%.534

2

$ I,68s,261
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Banortc USA Corporation end Subsidiarics

Cotrsolidsted Shtements of Cbanges in Shareholder's Equity

Yean Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

Common

Stock

Additiooal

Paid-in

Capitsl

371,3t l

Retaiued

Eamings

(Accumulated

Deficit)

69127

t7,607

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Loss

$ (4,634) $

(3ee)

(628)

Total

Shareholdeds

Eeuity

436,105

t7,607

(3ee)

(l l0)

452,575

( r 83,336)

(el )

$ 269,093

Brlmce at Januery l, 2015

Net income

Currency translation adjustments

Net change in unrealized loss on

securities available for sale, net

ofincome to< benefit of$339

Reclassified adjustment for realized

gains on sale ofsecurities, net

ofincome tax expense of$59

Belance et Dmcmber 31, 2015

Nst loss

Currenoy trrtrslation adjustments, net

Net change in unrealized Ioss oo

securities available for sale, net

of income tax benefit of $3

Reclassified adjustrnent for realized

garns on mle ofsecurities, nd

of income tax expense of $26

Brhtrcc rt Dcccmber 31, 2016

$ l $ 37l,3ll $

(628)

87,034

(r E3,336)

(el )

$l$371,311$(96,302)$(5,917)

(7)

(48)

(7')

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

5



Banorte USA Corporation and Subsidieries
Consolidated Staternents of Cash Flows

Yean Ended December 3l, 2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

20r6

s 2,60t $

(308)

(l)
(7e8)

(660)

13,3 I 6

14,993

16.935

3l,928

0.563)

( r ,563)

(82,762)

(u,32s)

l,758

I,758

60,497

622ss

9,858

39-659

49.51't

r I 8 375'r

20 15

Cesh flows from operrtlng activitlcs

hcome from continuing operations

Adjustrnents to reconcile net income to

net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Defened income taxes

Ne change in:

Accnred interest receivable

Federal income tax payable

Other asseB

Other liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Net cash fiom bant held for sale provrded by operating activities

Net cash provided by operations

Cesh flows from investing ectivitlcs

Additions to premises and equipment

Net cash from continuing operations used in investing activities

Net cash tom bank held for sale (used in) provided by investing activities

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Cash flows from Enaocing activities

Net change in line ofcredit

Net change in intercompany payable to Banco Mercantil

N€t cash from continuing operations provided by (used in) operating activities

Net cash fiom bank held for sale pmvided by (used in) investing activities

Net cash provided by (used in) financing adivities

Nct chsrgc in c:sh and crsh cquivalento

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofyear

Cash and cash equivalents at end ofyear

trss cash at the end ofthe year of bank held for sale

Cash rnd cash equivelenE rtcrd ofycar

See notes to oonsolidated financial statements.

765

562

843

2,U8

(t43)

('t,332)

1,926

(2,r74)

21.974

I 9,800

( 1.233)

(t,233)

120,459

119226

(t,t77)
(500)

(t,677)

(l s3,o3s)

( 1s4,7r 2)

( l 5,686)

55.345

39,659

(23 m5)

s 1t,142 $ 15,754
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Banorte tlSA Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31,2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

NOTE l: BUSINESS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION, AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Naure of Operulions

Banorte USA Corporation (Banorte) (a wholly owned subsidiary of Banco Mercantil del Norte, S.A. @anco Mercantil)) and its
subsidiaries. INB Financial Corp (INBFC) and Inter National Bank (the Bank), provide loans and banking services to consumers
and commercial customers throughout southern Texas and Mexico. Additionally. Banorte provides money hansfer services
rvorldwide from its wholly owned subsidiary, Uniteller Financial Services. Inc. (Uniteller), which has operations in 4t states

within the United States. Banorte and all of its subsidiary entities are hereafter refened to as "the Company." The accounting and

reporting policies ol the Company conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Slates of Anerica
(GAAP) and to general praclices of the banking industry. Policies and practices, which materially affect tie determination of the

Company's consolidated financial position. results of operations. and cash flows, are summarized as follows:

Pending Sale of Inler National Bonk

On October 3 I, 2016 INBFC entered into an agrcement to sell I00%o of the outstanding comnron stock of the Bank to a private
group of Purchasers (Purchasing Croup).

On the effective date ofthe sale transaction all ofthe outstanding equity interests ofthe Bank are to be sold to the Purchasing
Groupforapproximalely$200,000,000. Thehansactionisexpectedtocloseduringthefirstorsecondquarterof20lT.

The agteement contains both customary and specific representation warranties, and covenants for each of the pa(ies. The
completion of the transaction is subject to various customary closing and other conditions, including but not limited to, the

receipt of required regulatory approvals.

fie foregoing limited description of the transaction does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to
the stock purchase agreement.

SIGNIFICANT ACCO UNTING POLICIES

Discontinu ed Operolions

ln Aprit 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-08 "Reporting Discontinued Operalions qnd Disclosure of Disposals of Components of an
EntiSl' whicll requires that discontinued operations include those corporate disposals that represent a strateglc shift or have a major
irnpact on the entity's hnancial results and operations. Examples included a disposal of a major geographical location line of
business, or other significant part olthe entity. All revenue, expertses, impairment charges and disposal costs are to aggregated in a

single caption "income or loss fiom discontinued operations, net ofta;< effect" for all reporting periods presented. Further, all
assets are to be segregated from continuing operations and presented as assets held for sale. Liabilities are presented in a similar
manner in the liability section ofthe consolidated balance sheets.

Pri ncipl es of Consoli datio n

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Banorte and its subsidiaries: INBFC, Uniteller, and the Bank. All
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. See Note 2 for additional information on the
corporate disposition.

Use of Estimales

ln preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP, management is required 1o make estimates ard
assumptions that affect the reported amounts ofassets and liabilities as ofthe date ofthe consolidated balance sheet and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates
that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses,

the valuation offoreclosed real estate. the estimate ofthe fair value ofsecurities, the valuation ofgoodwill, and the valuation of
deferred tax assets.

7



Banorte tlSA Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

NOTE 1: BI-ISI\ESS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION, AND SIGMFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Significant Group Concenfialions of Credit Rish

Most of the Company's activities are with customers located in southern Texas and Mexico. The types of securities that the
Company invests in are described in Note 4. The types of lending that the Company engages in are described in Note 6.

The majority of cash and cash equivalents of the Company are maintained with major financial institutions in the United States
and all ofthe transaction acoounts held by the Company are at financial institutions subject to the provisions ofthe Dodd-Frank
Act. As such, interest bearing, nontransaction accounl deposits with these financial institutions may exceed the amount of
insurance provided on such deposits; however, these deposits typicdly may be redeemed upon demand and, therefore, bear
minimal risk. In monitoring this credit risk, the Bank periodically evaluates the stability of the financial institutions with which it
has deposits.

Cosh and Cash Equivalenls

For the purpose ol presentation in the consolidated stalements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as those
amounts included in the consolidated balance sheet captions "cash and due fmm banlis" and "federal funds sold." Genera.lly,
lederal funds are purchased and sold in one-day periods. The Company considers all highty liquid investments with original
rnaturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Inlerest Beaing Deposils in Banks

Interest bearing deposits in banks maturc within one year and are carried al cost.

Invatmenl Securities

Certain debt securities that management has the positive intent and abilify to hold to maturity are classified as "held to maturity"
and recorded at amortized cost. Trading securities are recorded at fair value with changes in fair value included in earnings.
Securities not classified as held to mafurity or trading, including equity securities with readily determinable fair values, are
classified as "available for sale" and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported
in other comprehensive income. Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method
over the terms of the securities. ln determining whether other-than-temporary impairment exists. management considers many
factors, including the length oftime and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, the financial condition and near-
term prospects of the issuer, and the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. Gains and losses on the sale ofsecurities are recorded on the trade
date and are determined using the specific identification method.

Federal Home Loan Ban* (FHLB) Stock

The Company's investment in FHLB stock is a restricted investment carried at cost ($100 per share par value), which
approximates its fair value. As a member of the FHLB system. the Company is required to maintain a minimum level of
investment in FHLB stock based on sgrecific percentages of its outstanding FHLB advances. The Company may request
redemption at par value of any stock in excess of the amount it is required to hold. Stock redemptions are made at the discretion
of FHLB. During the years ended December 3 I, 20 I 6 and 20 I 5, FHLB did not redeem any shares held by the Company.

Loans

The Company grants mortgage, commercial, and consumer loans to customers. A substantial portion of the loan portfolio is

represented by commercial and real estate loans throughout southern Texas and Mexico. The ability of the Company's debtors to
honor their contracts is dependent upon the general economic conditions in these areas

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff, which are
measured at hisorical cost. are generally reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances net of any uneamed income,
charge-otfs. and unamortized defened tbes and costs on originated loans. Loan origination fees and certain direct origination costs
are deferred and recognized as adjustments to interest income over the lives of the related loans. Uneamed income is amortized to
interest income using a level yield methodology.
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Banorte USA Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31.2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

NOTE t: BUSINESS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION. AND STGNIFICANT ACCOTjNTING POLICIES-continued

The accrual of interest on mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time when. in management's opinion, the

borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due. All interest accrued. but not collected for loans that are placed on
nonaccrual or charged ofl are reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cost-recovery
metho{ until qualilying for retum to accrual. Loans are retumed to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts
contractually due are brought cunent and fuiure payments are reasonably assured.

The Company previously adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2010-20 (Topic 310), Discloswes about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowancefor Credit Losses that
addressed disclosures of loans and other financing receivables and the related allowance. The accounting guidance defines a

portfolio segment as the level at which an entity develops and docunents a systematic methodology to determine the allowance
for loan losses. and a class of financing receivables as the level of disaggregation of portfolio s€gments based on the initial
measurement attribute. risk characteristics. and methods for assessing risk. The Company's portfblio segments are commercial,
real estate, cash secured, and consumer. Each portfolio segment contains a single class of financing receivables. Under this
accounting guidance. the allowance is presented by portfolio segment (See Note 6).

Advanceslrom Bonowersfor Toxes ond Insurance

The Company collects escrow amounts for taxes and insuance on certain of its residential mortgage loans. At December 3 l,
2016 and 2015, these advances amounted to $1,730 and $1,343, respectively. The advances are included in consolidated balance

sheet in the caption other liabilities.

Truabled Debt Restructured (TDR) Loons

A TDR loan is a loan, which the Company, tbr reasons related to a borrower's financial difficulties. grants a concession to the
bonower that the Company would not otherwise consider. The loan terms. which have been modified or restructured due to a

borrower's financial difficulty. include, but are not limited to, a reduction in the stated interest rate; an extension of the maturity at

an interest rate below current market; a reduction in the face amount ofthe debt; a reduction in the accrued interestl or re-aging,
extensions, defenals, renewals, and rewrites. A TDR loan would ge nera.lly be considered impaired in the year of modification and

assessed periodically for continued impairment.

Allowance lor Loon Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents management's estimste of probable losses inherent in the Company's lending activities.
The allowance for loan losses does not include amounts related to accrued interest receivable as accrued interest receivable is

reversed when a loan is placed on nonaccrual status.

The Company performs periodic and systematic detailed reviews of its lending portfolios to identiff credit risks and assess the
overall collectability of those portfolios. The allowance on certain homogenous toan portfolios is based on aggregated portfolio
segment evaluations. Loss forecast models are utilized for these portfolios, which consider a variety offactors including, but not

limited to, historical loss experience, estimated delaults or foreclosures based on portfolio trends, delinquencies, bankruptcies,
economic conditions, and credit scores.

The Company's real estate portfolio segment is comprised primarily of homogenous loans secured by residential and commercial
real estate. The amount of losses incurred in the homogenous loan pools is estimated based upon how many of the loans will
default and the loss in the event of default. Using modeling methodologies, the Company estimates how rnany of the homogenous
loans will defhult based on the individual loans' attributes aggregated into pools of homogenous loans with similar attributes.

The attributes that are most signiticant to the probability of default and are used to estimate default include the risk ratings.
historical loss, product type, and geography. The estlmate is based on the Company's historical experience with the loan portfolio.
The estimate is adjusted to reflect an assessment ofenvironmental lactors that are not reflected in the historical dat4 such as

changes in real estate values. local and national economies, underwriting standards, and the regulatory environment.
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Banorte l-lSA Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31.2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

NOTE l: B[.ISINESS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION, AflD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

The allowance on the remaining portfolio segments (commercial loans, cash secured, consumer, and other) is calculated using
loss rates delineated by risk rating and product b/pe. Factors considered when assessing loss rates include the value of the

underlying collateral, the industry of the obligor, the obligor's liquidity. and other financial and qualitative factors. These

statistical models are updared regularly for changes in economic and business conditions. Included in the analysis ofthese loan
portfolios ure reserves. which are maintained to cover uncertainties that affect the Company's estimate of probable losses

including economic uncertainty and large single def,aults.

Nonperforming loans are reviewed in accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 310-10-35 on impaired
loans and TDRs. lf necessary, a specific allowance is established for these loans if they are deemed to be impaired. A loan is

considered impaired when based on current information and events. it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect the

scheduled payments ofprincipal or interest when due according to the contractual terms ofthe loan agreement. Factors considered
by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled
principal and interest payments rvhen due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally
are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-
case basis. taking into consideration all the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of delay,
the reason lor the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount ofthe shortfall in relation to the principal and

interest owed. lmpairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present va.lue

of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, the loan's obtainable market price, or the fair va.lue of
the collateral ifthe loan is collateral dependent.

For such loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value or
observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of the loan. An unallocated component for
nonclassified loans is maintained to cover uncertainties that cotild affect management's estimate of probable losses. The
unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the
methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loars are collectively evaluated for impairment based on historical loss experience,
current economic conditions, and performance trends. Accordingly. the Company does not separately identiff individual
consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures, unless such loans are subject ol a restrucfuring agreement.

In addition to the allowance for loan losses, the Company also estimates probable losses related to unfunded lending
commitments, such as letters o[ credit and financial guarantees, and binding unfimded loan commitments. Unfunded lending
commitments are subject to individual reviews and are analyzed and segregated by risk according to the Company's intemal risk-
rating scale. These risk classifications. in conjunction with an analysis of historical loss experience, utilization asstunptions,
current economic conditions, performance trends within the portfolio, and any other pertlnent informatiory result in the estimation
of the reserve for unfrrnded lending commitments.

The allowance for loan losses related to the loan portfolio is rcported as a part ofloans in the consolidated balance sheets whereas

the reserve for unfunded lending commitments is reported on the consolidated balance sheets in other tiabilities. Provision for
credit losses related to the loan and lease portfolio and unfunded lending commitments is reported separately in the consolidated
statements of operations.

Nonperlo rming Loons, Chorgc-Olfs, and Debnqu encief

Nonperforming loans generally include loans that have been placed on nonaccrual status including nonaccrual loans whose
contractual terms have been restructured in a manner that grants a concession to a borrower experiencing hnancial difticulties.

The entire balance ofa loan is contractually delinquent ifthe minimum payment is not received by the specified due date on the
customer's billing statement. Interest and t'ees continue to accrue on past due loans until the date the loan goes into nonaccrual
status, ifapplicable.

- t0-



Banorte USA Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 3 l. 20 I 6 and 20 I 5

(in thousands)

NOTE l: BUSINESS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION, AND SIGMFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

The outstanding balance of real estate secured loans within the residential real estate portfblio segment that is in excess of the
estimated property value, less estimated costs to sell. is charged off no later than the end of the month in which the account
becomes 180 days past due. The outstanding balance of real estate secured loans within the commercial real estate portfolio
segment that is in excess ofthe present value offuture cash flows discounted at the loan's eft'ective rate, or collateral value as a
practical expedient for collateral dependent loans, is charged off no later than the end of the month in rvhich the account is
determined to be impaired. The estimated property value is determined utilizing appraisals or broker price opinions of the fhir
value of the collateral. The present value of future cash llows is calculated in accordance with the guidance outlined ln ASC 310-
10.

The outstanding balance of consumer and other loars. that include overdrafts and credit cards. are treated in accordance with
Office of the Comptroller of the Cunency (OCC) Bulletin 2000-20, Uniform Retail Credit Classi/ication and Account
Manogement. Overdrafts are charged off rvhen it is determined recovery is not likely or the overdraft becomes 60 days old
whichever comes first.

The outstanding balance of secured commercial loans, are written down to the fair value of the collateral upon determination that
alI or a portion ofany loan balance is uncollectible. The fair value ofthe collateral is estimated by management based on current
financial information, inspections. and appraisals. The outstanding balance of unsecured commercial loans are charged off no
later than the end oflthe month in which the account becomes 120 days past due.

l,oans within all portfolio segments are generally placed on nonaccrual status and classified as nonperforming at 90 days past due.
Accrued interest r€ceivable is reversed when a loan is placed on nonaccrual status. Intercst collections on nonaccruing loans for
which the ultimate collectability of principal is uncertain are applied as principal reductions. These loans may be restored to
accrual status when all principal and interest is current and full repayment ofthe remaining contractual principal and interest is
expected, or when the loan otherwise becomes well-secured and is in the process of collection.

Loans whose contractual terms have been modified in a TDR and are current at the time of the restrucfuring remain on accrual
status if there is demonstrated performance prior lo the restructuring and repayment in full under the restnlctured terms is
expected. Otherwise, the loans are placed on nonaccrual status and reported as nonperfonning until there is sustained repayment
performance for a reasonable period, generally six months. TDRs that are on accrual status are reported as performing TDRs
through the end of the calendar year in which the restructuring occurred or the year in which the loans are returned to accrua.l

status. In addition. if accruing TDRs bear less than a market rate of interest at the time of modification. they are reported as
performing TDRs throughout the remaining lives of the loans.

Derivalive Loan Commilments

Mortgage loan commitments that relate to the origination of a mortgage that will be held for sale upon funding are considered
derivative instruments. Loan commitments that are derivatives are recognized at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets in
other assets and other liabilities with changes in their fair values recorded in noninterest income.

Forword Loan Sole Commitmenls

The Company carefully evaluates all loan sales agreements to determine whether they meet the definition of a derivative as facts
and circumstances may differ significantly. lf agreements quali$, to protect against the price risk inherent in derivative loan
commitments. the Company uses both "mandatory delivery" and "best efforts" forward loan sale commitments to mitigate the
risk of potential decreases in the values of loans that would result from the exercise of the derivative loan commitments.
Mandatory delivery contracts are accounted for as derivative instruments. Accordingly, forward loan sale commitments are
recognized at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets in other assets and liabilities with changes in their fair values recorded
in other noninterest income.

The Company estimates the fair value ol its forward loan sales commitnents using a methodology similar to that used fbr
derivative loan comm itments.

Financial Instrumenls

In the ordinary course of business the Company has entered into commitments to extend credit, including commercial letters of
credit and standby letters ofcredit. Such tinancial instruments are recorded when they are funded.

- ll -



Banorte LlSA Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 3 l. 20 I 6 and 201 5

(in thousands)

NOTE l: BUSINESS, BASIS OF PR"ESEN'IATION, AIYD SIGNIFICANT ACCOLh{TING POLICIES - continued

Foreclosed Assels

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value, less estimated selling cost at the date of
floreclosure. All writedowns based on the asset's fair value at the date ofacquisition are charged to the allowance for loan losses.

After foreclosure, propefty held for sale is carried at the lower ofthe new cost basis or fair value, less estimated cost to sell and

depreciation is not recorded lmpairment losses on property to be held and used are measured as the amount by which the carrying
amount of a property exceeds its fair value and depreciated based on the remaining useful life. Costs of significant propert-v

improvements are capitalized not to exceed fair value ofproperty, whereas costs relating to holding property are expensed.

Valuations are periodically perflormed by rmanagement, and any subsequent write{owns are recorded as a charge to operations. il
necessary, to reduce the carrying value of a property to the lower of its cost or fair value, less estimated cost to sell.

Premises and Equipment

Land is canied at cost. Buildings and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation computed on the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives ofthe assets.

Cosh Sunender Value of Life Insurance

Life inswance policies are initially recorded at cosl at the date ofpurchase. Subsequent to purchase, the policies are periodically
adjusted for changes in contract value. The adjutment to contract value increases or decreases the carrying value ofthe policies
and is recorded as income or expense on the consolidated statements ofoperations.

Income Toxes

On January l,2009, the Company adopted changes to FASB ASC 740 -Accountingfor Income Taxes rclated to accounting flor

uncertainty in income taxes, which sets out a consistent framework to determine the appropriate level of tax reserves to maintain
for uncertain tax positions. The Company had no unrecognized tar benefits and believes it has no uncertain tax positions at

December 31.2016 and 2015.

The Company's income tax expense consists ofa current and a deferred component. Current income tax expens€ reflects taxes to
be paid or refunded for the current period by applying the provisions of the enacted tax law to the taxable income or excess of
deductions over revenues. The Company determines deferred income taxes using the liability (or balance sheet) method. Under
this method, the net defened tax asset or liability is based on the tax effbcts ofthe difflerences between the book and tax bases of
assets and liabilities, and enacted changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in the period in which they occur.

Deferred lncome ta>< expense results from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between periods. Defened tax assets are

recognized if it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the tax position will be realized or sustained upon

examination. The term more likely than not means a likelihood of more than 50%l the terms examined and upon examination
also include resolntion ofthe related appeals or litigation processes, ifany. A tax position thal meets the rnore-likely-than-not
recognition threshold is initially and subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than Str/o

likelihood of being realized upon settlement with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. T'he

determination of rvhether or not a tax posirion has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold considers the facts,

circumstances. and information available at the reporting date and is subject to management's.iudgment. Deferred tax assets are
reduced by a valuation allowance il based on the weight of evidence available. it is more likely than not that some po(ion or all
of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties on income trx€s ari a component ol income tax exp€nse. During the years ended
December 31. 2016 and 2015, the Company recognized no interest and penalties.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal .iurisdiction. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to

U.S. f'ederal or state income tax examinations by tax authorities for years befbre 2013.

Adverlising

Advertising costs are expensed as incuned.
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Banorte USA Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 3 I - 2016 and 20 l5

(in thousands)

NOTE l: BUSINESS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION, AND SIGMFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Goodwill

The Company evaluates its goodwill on an annual basis for impairment or whenever a higgering event indicates that the carrying
value may not be recoverable.

Inlongible Assels

Intangible assets primarily include a core deposit intangible asset related to the initial purchase ofthe stock ofthe Bank and patent
rights and applications include certain rights acquired from the son of a former Uniteller shareholder. lntangible assets with
definite lives are being amortized over their estimated useful lives. which range from 3 to l8 years.

Sofiw ore D ev elop ne N C osl s

The Company capitalizes certain costs incurred to produce proprietary software used to process money transfers, including
coding, testing, and product quality assuran@, once technological feasibility has been established. Amortization is computed on a
case-by<ase basis over the estimated economic life of the software, which is 3 years.

De rivolive Fi nancial I nstrurrnnts

The Company's cash flows are exposed to foreign currency risk fiom transactions denorninated in foreigr cunencies, primarily
the Mexican Peso. The Company utilizes forward exchange contracts to mitigate risk of volarility resulting from fluctuating
foreign exchange rates. The maximum length oftime that the fonvard exchange contracts hedges its exposure to the variability in
future cash flows associated with foreign currency risk is 72 hours. As of December 31. 2016 ard 2015. the Company did not
have any outstanding contracts. These contracts are derivatives and do not quali[ for hedge accounting: accordingly, they have
been marked to market currently in earnings.

Fo r e i g n Cu ne n cy T ro ns ldi o n

The functional currency of the Company's foreign subsidiaries is considered the local curency of the country. Accordingly,
assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries ar€ ranslated at the year+nd exchange rate. lncome and expense items are
translated at average exchange rates in effect during the year. The resulting translation adjustments are recorded in the
consolidated balance sheets in accumulated other comprehenslve loss.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are recorded in the
consolidated statements of operations. Foreign exchange revenue attributable to foreign curency hedging on the consolidated
statements ofoperations was $6,604 and $5.794 for the years ended December 31. 2016 and 2015, respectively. This results fiom
the Company's daily settlement of most of its loreign curency denominated transactions.

Transfers of Finoncial Assels

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over
transferred assets is deemed surrendered when i) the asset has been isolated from the Company, ii) the transferee obtains the
right (free ofconditions that constrain it from taking advantage ofthat right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets. and
iii) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them
before maturity.

Reclassifications

Certain 2015 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2016 presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on
2015 net income or shareholder's equity.

- 13-



Banorte LlSA Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidared Financial Statements

December 31.2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

NOTE l: BUSINESS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION, AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOLINTING POLICIES - continued

R ecenl A ccou nlin g Pronou nc emenfr

ln January 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-01. Finoncial Inslruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10):
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liobilities. The updue addresses certain aspects of recognition.
measurement, presentation, ar,d disclosure of financial instruments. The amendments are effective for fiscal years. and interim
periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2017 . The amendment relates to equity securities without readily
determinable fair values and will be applied prospectively to equity investments that exist as of the date of adoption of the
amendments. Earlier applicalion is permitted under certain circumstances. The amendment will be applied by means of a

cumulative effect adjustment to the balance sheet as of the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption. This statement is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016. the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-02. Leases (Topic 842). The amendment to the Leases

topic of the Accounting Standards Codification was to revise certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentatioq and

disclosure of leasing transactions. The amendment will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including
interim periods within those tiscal years. Earlier application is permined. This statement is not expected to have a material
impact on the Company's consolidated frnancial statements.

ln March 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-05, Derivatives and Hedging (fopic 815): Eflect of
Derivalive Conlracl Novations on Exisling Hedge Accounting Relationshlps. The amendment clarifies that a change in the
counterparty to a derivative instrument that has been designated as the hedging instrumenl under ASC Topic 815 does not. in and

of itself. require dedesignation of that hedging relationship provided that all other hedge accounting oiteria continue to be

met. The amendment wilt be effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15.2016. Earlier application is

permitted. This statement is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In March 2016. the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016"07, Investments - Equity Method and Joint Venlwes (Topic
323): Sinplifying the Tronsition lo the Equity Melhod of Accounling.Tlrc amendments affect all entities that have an investment
that becomes qualified for the equity method of accounting as a result of an increase in the level of ov'nership interest or degree

of influence. The update simplifies the transition to the equity method of accounting by eliminating retroactive ad.iustment olthe
investment when an investment qualifies for use of the equity method, among other things. The amendment will be effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15,2016. Earlier application is permitted. This statement is not expected to have a

material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In March 2016. the FASB issued Accounting StandarG Update 20lG09,Compensarion - Stock Compensation (Topic 718):
Improvements to Employee Share-Based Pqtment Accounling. Under the update, all excess tax benefits and tax deficiencies
related to share-based payment awards should be recognized as income tax expense or benefit in the income statemenl during the
period in which they occur. Previously. such amounts were recorded in the pool of excess tax benefits included in additional
paid-in capital. ifsuch pool was available. Because excess tax benefits are no longer recognized in additional paid-in capital, the
assumed proceeds from applying the treasury slock method when computing earnings per share should exclude the amount of
excess til( benefits that would have previously been recognized in additional paid-in capital. Additionally, excess tax benefits
should be classitled along with other income ta"r cash flows as an operating activity rather than a financing activity, as was
previously the case. ASU 2016-09 also provides that an entity can make an entity-wide accotrnting policy election to either
estimate the number of awards that are expected to vest (curent GAAP) or account for forfeitures when they occur. ASU 2016-
09 changes the threshold to qualifu for equity classification (rather than as a liability) to permit rvithholding up to the maximum
statutory tax rates (rather than the minimum as was previously the case) in the applicable jurisdictions. The amendment will be

effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. Earlier application is permitted. This statement is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In June.2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credil Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Inslruments. The update requires the measurement of all expected credit losses for
financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable
forecasts and requires enhanced disclosures related to the significant estimates and judgments used in estimating credit losses, as

well as the credit qualiry and underwriting standards of an organization's portfolio. In addition. ASU 2016-13 amends the
accounting for credit losses on available-for-sale debt securities and purchased financial assets with credit deterioration. The
amendrnenl rvill be effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15.2019. The Company is evaluating the impact
this amendment will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements.
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Banorte USA Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 3 l. 2016 and 20 I 5

(in thousands)

NOTE l: BUSII\IESS, BASIS OF PRESENTATION, AND SIGNfFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

In August 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-15, Stolement of Cash Flows (Topic 2j0): Classification
of Certain Cash Receipts ond Cash Paymenls. The update addresses eight specific cash flow issues with the objective of
reducing the diversity in how certain cash receipts and cash payments are presented and classified in the statement ofcash flows.
The amendment will be eflective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,2017. Early adoption is permitted. This
statement is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In October,20l6, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-17, Consolidation (lopic 810): lnteresls Held through
Related Porties That Are under Common Control. This update amends the consolidation guidance on how a reporting entity that
is the single decision maker of a variable interest entity (VIE) should treat indirect interests in the entity held tfuough related
parties that are under common control with the reporting entity when determining whether it is the primary beneficiary of that
VtE. The amendment will be effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,2016. This statement is not exp€cted
to have a rnaterial impact on the Cornpany's consolidated financial statements.

lnNovember,2016,theFASBissuedAccountingStandardsUpdate2016-lS,Stalemenlof CashFlows(Topic230): Restricted
Cash. The amendments in this update require that a statement of cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of
cash. cash equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or resricted cash equivalents. Therefore, amounts
generally described as restricted ca.sh and restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash equivalents when
reconciling the beginning of period and end of period total amounts sbown on the statcment of cash flows. The amendment will
be effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,2017. Early adoption is permitted. This stalement is not
expected to have a malerial impact on the Company's consolidated financial stntements.

Subseqaeat Eveds

The Company has evaluated all subsequent events through March 1,2017, the date the consolidated financial statements were
available to be issued.
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Banorte tlSA Corporation snd Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 3 l, 20 I 6 and 20 I 5

(in thousands)

NOTE 2: ASSETS AND LTABILTTIES HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINTIED OPERATIONS

As discussed in Note l, on October 31, 2016, the Company entered into an agreement to sell Inter National Bank. This
transaction represented a strategic shift whereby Banorte would be eliminating its commercial banking operations in the United
States thereby requiring the Company to utilize the provisions of ASU 2014-08 in the preparation of its financial statements.

Because the discontinued operations portion ofthe Company's consolidated balance sheet represents such a significant portion of
the total balance sheet, amounts and disclosures throughout the notes to the financial statements relate to both continued and

discontinued operations and is specifically designated as to which it applies.

Financial information related to the balance shees of the Bank included in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31.
20 16 and 2015 is presented below:

2016 2015

Cerrying amounts of mrjor clesses of
rssets included as discontinued operations:

Cash and cash equivalents

I nterest-bearing deposits in banks

Investm€nt securities available for sale

Loans held for sale

Loans held for investnent, net ofallowance for loan losses

Property, plant and equipment

Gooduill
Cash surender value oflife insurance

Deferred federal income tax asset

Other classes of assets that are not major

Total assets of discontinued operations classified
as held for sale in the oonsolidated balance shcet

$

$ 1,616.233 $ 1,746,093

I 8,375

t2t.5t6
299,612

l,686

I,040,0r 8

35,92t
8,347

60.427

8,250

22.08 I

23,905

27 ,t7 4

435,828

1,t29

920,399

36.975

2t 1.347

58,670

I 0,548

20.r r8

$

Carrying amounts of mejor clesscs of
liabilities i ncluded rs discontinued operations:

Deposits

Short-term bonowings
Other classes ofliabilities that are not major

Total liabilities of discontinued operations classified
as held for salc in the consolidated balance sheet

$ 1,292,t50

60,000

4.659

$ 1,356,809 $ 1,298,645

Financial information related to the statements of operations the Bank included inthe consolidated statements oloperalions for
the years ended December 31,2016 and 2015 is presented below:

2016 201 5

Major classes of the line items consituting
(lo*s) iocomr from discontlnucd opcrations:

Interest income

lnterest expense

Credit to (provision for) loan losses

Noninterest income

Goodwill impairment charge

Noninterest expenses

(Loss) income before tax from discontinued operations

I ncome tax expense

Total net (loss) income from discontinued operations

$ 57,6r 8

(4,337)

r,750

13,929

(203.000)

t43_467\

59.394

(6,62 l )
(3r2)

t4,379

(43.583)

$

( l 77.507)

(8,430)

23,257

(7,698)

- 16-
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Banorte USA Corporation end Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 3 l, 2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

NOTE 2: ASSETS AND LIABILITIFS llr'.r.D FOR SALE AND DISCONTII\IUED OPERAIIONS- continued

During 2016, the Company determined the carrying value of the Bank's goodwill was impaired. Accordingly, the Company
recorded an impairrrent charge of $203.000 in 2016. The impairment charge is recorded in the noninterest expense in the

preceding schedule. The following is areconciliation of goodwill for 2016:

Goodwill at January l, 2016

lmpairment charge

Goodwill at December 31, 2016

Selling and paying agent lists

Trademarks

Patents

Covenants not to compete

$ 2|,347
(203-000)

s E,347

Subsequo,t to the recording ofthe impainnent charge, the carrying value ofthe net assets to be disposed ofapproximated the
sales proceeds to be received by the Company.

NOTE 3: GOODWLL At\lD INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continuing operations)

For the years ended December 3 l, 2016 and 2015, the Company evaluated its goodwill for impairment as of August 31 , 2016
and 2015, respectively. The amounts reflected in continuing operations in the consolidated balance sheets are $19,097 at both
December 31,2016 and 2015.

The Company's intangible assets at December 31,2016 and 2015 consisted of the following:

2016

$ 2so

68

t,242
75

t,635
(537)

20t5

s 274

73

t,230
75

t,652
/d75\Accumulated amortization

Intangible assets. net $ r,098 $ I,177

Amortization expense for the years ended December3l,2016 and 2015 amounted to $91 and $Ifi), respectively. Estimated
future amortization expense for intangible assets owned at December 31,2016 is as follows:

Yean Ending tlecember 3 l,

20t1
201 8

2019

2020

2021

Thereafter

$

Total $ 1,098

94

94

94

94

94
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Banorte USA Corporation and Subsidieries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 3l-2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

NOTE 4: SECURITTES (discontinucd opcrations)

The amortized cost and fair value o[securities, with gross unrealized gains and losses, at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as

follows:

Amortized

Cosl

Gross

Unrealized

Gains

Gross

Unrealized

Losses Value

Far

Availeble for Sele

December 31,2016:

M ortgagebacked securities

Collateralized mortgage obligations

SBA loan pools

Total

December3l,20l5:

Mo(gage-backed securifies

Collateralized mortgage obligations

SBA loan pools

U S GovemmentAgenry

Total

Due Ilom one to five years

Due fiom five to ten years

Due after ten years

Totals

$ 307,78r $ 67 $ (8,236) s 299,6t2

$ $ s $l03,l7t

87,7t1

I I 6-897

58

9

(3.307)

(2,882)

(2 047\

99,922

84,83 I

I I 4.859

$ I 5 1,529

r 45,588

t36,796

t0 000

$ 209

45

$ (2,se0)

(4,t23)

( 1,6 17)

(9)

$ t49,t48

l4 1,465

13s,224

9.99r

$ 441,913 $ 2s4 $ (8,339) $ 43s,828

The Company has not entered into any interest rate swaps, options, or futues contracts relaling to investment s€curities.

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, proceeds fiom sales of securities available for sale were $685.554 and

$375,730, respectively. Realized gains amounted to $139 and $245 for the years ended D€c€mber 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. Realized losses amounted to $65 and $76 for the years ended December 31.2016 and 2015, respectively.

The amortized oost and estimated fair value o[ securities at December 31, 2016, by contractual malurity, are shown below.
Expected maturities will differ ftom conhactual maturities becarse borrowers rnay have the right to call or prepay obligations
with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Available for Sale

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

$ t2,965

6,803

288.0 I 3

t2,832

6,768

280.0t2

$

$ 307,781 $ 299,6t2

Maturities ofsecurities do not reflect repricing opportu:ities present in adjusable rate securities.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, s€curities with a carrying value of $273,758 and $306,488, respectively. were pledged to secure
public deposits and for other purposes required or permitted by law.
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Banorte [TSA Corporation and Subsidieries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31. 2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

NOTE 4: SECURITIES - continucd

The following table discloses, as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company's investment securities thal have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position for less than 12 months and those that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for
12 or more months:

$

kss than 12 months

Estinated Gross

Market Unrealized

Value lasses

I 2 months or longer

Estimated Gross

Market Unrealized

Value Losses

6,415

58,4 I 6

86.405

$86,684

26,4t4

2 1.953

(2,8e3)

(637 )
( 129)

$ $ (4 l4)
(2,24s)
( I .918)

Decenrber3l,2016:

Mortgagebacked secui tis
Collateralized mortgage obligations

SBA loan pools

Tolal

December 31,201 5:

Mortgage-backed securities

Collateral ized mortgage obligations

SBA loan pools

U,S Govemment Agency

Total

$ r35,05r $ (3,659) $ I 5l ,236 $ (4,577)

$ 65,344

33,656

62,697

9-991

(7e8)

(3 70)

(451)

(9)

75,761

I 07,809

61,222

$ $ ( r ,792)
(3,7s31

(r,166)

$ (6,7t I )$ 17r,688 $ (r,628) $ 246,792

M o rlg og e-B oc ked Sec arities

The unrealized losses on lhe Company's investment in mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations rvere
primarily caused by interest rate increases. The Company purchased those investments at a discount relalive to their face amount.
and the contractual cash flows of those investments are guaranteed by an agency of the U.S. golemment. Accordingly. it is
expected that the securities would not be seftled at a price less than the amortized cost basis of the Company's investments.
Because the decline in market va.lue is atuibutable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, and because the Company
does not intend to sell the investments and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the investments
before recovery oftheir a,Dortized cost bases, which may be at maturity. the Company does not consider those investments to be
other-than-temporarily impaired at December 3 l, 201 6.

Ol h e rt h an -Te mp orury I mp airme nt

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more frequently when
economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (i) the length of time and the elitent to which the
fair value has been less than cost, (ii) the financial condition and near-term prosp€cts of the issuer, and (iii) evaluation by the
Company of (a) its intent to sell a debt security prior to rccovery and (b) whether it is rnore likely than not the Company will have
to sell the debt securiry prior to recovery. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, no investment securities were other-than-
temporarily impaired.
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Banorte USA Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31.2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

NOTE 5: FORECLOSED ASSETS (discontinued operalions)

A summary ofthe balances of loreclosed assets at December 31,2016 and 2015 is presented below:

S irgb fr mil.v res ilerres

Comnrrcial real estat€ arul otlEr

Total

2016

$ 876

2.630

$ 3,506

2015

$ 390

3,508

$ 3,898

At December 31,2016, single-family residences include l0 houses and commercial real estate and other consists of ll
foreclosures with various collateral types. At December 31, 2015. single-family residences include 4 houses and commercial real
estate and other consists of I 1 foreclosures with various collateral types.

NOTE 6: LOANS RECEMBLE (discontinued operations)

A stnnmary of the balances of loans receivable at December 31,2016 and 20 I 5 is as follows

Commercial

Real estate

Cash secured

Consumer and other

Subtotal

Less allowance for loan losses

Total

2016

$ 28.739

97t,248

54,880

t.407

I,056,274

I 6.256

$ 1.040,018

201 5

$ 33,246

852,899

51,819

689

938.653

l 8.254

$ 920,39e

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank had total commercial real estate loans of $842,906 and $733,869. respectively.
Included in these amounls, the Bank had consfuction, land developmenl, and other land loans represenling ll1oh and 95o/o.

resp€ctively, of total capital at December 31,2016 and 2015. The Bank had non<wner occupied commercial real estate loans
representing 262Yoand239o/ooflotal capital at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Sound risk management practices and
appropriate levels of capital are essential elements of a sound commercial real estate lending propram (CRE). Concentrations of
CRE exposures add a dimension of risk that compounds the risk inherent in individual loans. lnteragency guidance on CRE
concentrations describe sound risk management practices which include board and management oversight. portfolio
management, management information systems, market analysis, portfolio stress testing and sensitivity analysis, credit
underwriting standards. and credit risk review functions. Management believes it has implemented these practir:es in order to
monitor its CRE. An institution which has reported loans for constructiorl land development, and other land loans representing
100%o ot more of total risk-weighted assets, or total non-owner occupied commercial real estate loans representing 300o/o or more
ofl the institution's total risk-based capital and the outstanding balance of commercial real estate loan portfolio has increased by
50%6 or more during the prior 36 months, may be identified for further supervisory analysis by regulators to zlss€ss the nature and
risk posed by the concentration.

At December 31.2016 and 2015, the majority of the Company's loans were collateralized with real estate. The real estate
collateral provides an altemate source of repayment in the event of default by the bonower and may deteriorate in value during
the time the credit is extended. The weakening of real estate markets may have an adverse eflect on the Company's profitabilir)*
and asset quatity. lf the Company were requiredto liquidate the collateral securing a loan to sadsry the debt during a period of
reduced real estate values, earnings and capital could be adversely affected. Additionally, the Company has loans secured by
inventory, accounls receivable, equipment marketable securities, or other assets. The debtors' ability to honor their contracts on
all loans is substantially dependent upon the general economic conditions ofthe region.

Included in real estate loans at December 31.2016 and 2015 are participation loans purchased from other financial institutions
amounting to $86,721 and $65.310, respectively. The original balance on these loans amounted to $147,280 and $88,030.
respectively.
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Banortc USA Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stat€ments

December 31,2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

NOTE 6: LOAI\IS RECEIYABLE - continucd

The following table sets forth information regarding the activity in the allowance for loan losses for December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Real Cash Consumer

Commercial Estate Secured and Other Total

December 3 1,2016:

Allowance lor loan losses:

Beginning balance, December 3 l, 2015

Charge-offs

Recoveries

Provision

Ending balance, December 3 l, 201 6

Ending balance allocated to loans

individually evaluated for impairment

Ending balance allocated to loans

collectively evaluated for impairnrnt

Loans recehtable:

$ $

(5921

$ 16,256

745 $ ls,l7s $ 96 $ 16,016

$ 2E,73e $ 971,24E $ 54,8E0 S 1307 $ t,0s6,274

$$ 1,414

(22E)

t5l

16,687

(2re)

163

il 2161

$ ls3
(172)

57

58

9J

18,254

(6t9)
37t

lt 7501

$ 745 $ 15.415 $ -

$

$-$240$-$-$240

$ 2,603 $ E,307 g_ 9_- $ 10,e10

$ 26,t36 $ 962,94t $ 54,880 $ t,407 $ 1,04s,364

$

Ending balance December 3 l, 201 6

Ending balance of loans individually

evaluated for impairment at

December3l,20l6

Ending balance of Ioars collectively

evaluated for impairment at

December3l,2016

-21 -



NOTE 6: LOANS RECEryABLE - continued

Banorte USA Corporation ond Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

Cash

Conrrrrcbl F:sBle Secured

Rea Consurer

ard Ottrr

s (7) , 
,l:1,

- t67

753
t-t*

Toal

December3l,20l5:

Allowonce lor loan losses:

Beginning bahrre. December 3 l, 201 4

Cturge-ots

Recor,rrbs

Provbbn

Endirg bahrce, Decenber 3 l, 2015

ErdrgbahrEe dbcated to bam

indivitully erahated fur inpairnen

Erdiry bahnce albcated to loars

colbctitely evahnted br inpainrert

l.oaLs receivahle:

s 2297
(79)

t8l
(eE5)

$ r,414

$ 14,712

(4r8)

I,1 56

t237

$ 16,687

s 17,183

(745)

1,504

it2

s I 8,254

$ $$ 108 $ $ 108

$ l,,1l4 s t6.579 $ $ t53 $ 18,146

Erdirg bahrcs Dec.enber 3 I , 201 5

Erdiry bah.rre of bars irdiviiully
eni.eted br inTan'rErt at

Decenber3l,20l5

Erdiry bahrrce of bam colhctively

evaltatcd fur LrpairfiErt at

Decenber3l,20l5

s 33,246 $ 852,899 S 51,819 s 689 $ 938,653

g 1t,726 S 16 $ - S u.742

$ 33,246 S 84r,r73 $ 51,803 $ 689 $ 926.9r I

The Company monitors credit quality within its portfotio segments based on primary credit quality indicators. All of the
Company's loan^s are evaluated using pass rated or reservable criticized as the primary credit quality indicator. The term
reservable criticized refers to those loans thal are intemally classified or listed by the Company as special mentionq substandard.
doubtful, or loss. These assets pose an elevated risk and may have a high probability ofdefault or total loss.

The classifications of loans reflect a judgment about the risks of default and loss associated with the loan. The Company reviews
the ratings on credits monthly. Ratings are adjusted to reflectthe degree ofrisk and loss that is felt to be inherent in each credit as

of each monthly reporting period. The methodolory is structured so that specific allocations are increased in accordance with
deterioruion in credit quality (and a corresponding increase in risk and loss) or decreased in accordance with improvement in
credit quality (and a corresponding decrease in risk and loss).

Credits rated pass refbrs to loans that are not considered criticized. ln addition to this primary credit quality indicator, the
Company uses other credit quality indicators for cerrain types of loans.

Credits rated special mention show clear signs of financial weaknesses or deterioration in credit worthiness, however, such
concerns are not so pronounced that the Company generally expects to experience significant loss within the short term. Such
credits typically maintain the ability to perform within standard credit terms and credit exposurE is nol as prominent as credits
rated more harshly.

Credits rated substandard are those in which the normal repayment of principal and interest may be, or has been jeopardized by
reason ofadverse trends or developments ofa financial, managerial, economic or political nature, or important weaknesses exist
in collateral. A protracted workout on these credits is a distinct possibility. Prompt corective action is therefore required to
strengthen the Company's positiorL and/or to reduce exposure and to assure that adequate remedial measures are taken by the
borrower. Credit exposure becomes more likely in such credits and a serious evaluation ofthe secondary support to the credit is
performed.

Credits rated doubtful are those in which full collection of principal appears higtrly questionable, and which some degree of loss is
anticipate4 even though the ultimate amount of loss may not yet be crrtain andlor other factors exist, which could affect
collection of debt. Based upon available information, positive action by the Company is required to avert or minimize loss.
Credits rated doubtful are generally also placed on nonaccrrrnl.

s
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

NOTE 6: LOANS RECEMBLE - continued

Credits rated loss are those that are considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance as bankable assets is
not \+'aranted. This classification does not mean thal the asset has absolutely no recovery or salvage value, but rather that it is not
practical or desirable to defbr writing offthis asset even though partial recovery may be affected in the future.

The lollowing table s€ts forth information regarding the intemal classiEcations of the loan portfolio. the primary credit quality
indicator, as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, as indicated:

December 3 l, 2016:

Grade:

Pass

Special mention

Substandard nonimpaired

Pass impaired

Special mention impaired

Sutstandard impaired

Total

Credit risk profile based on

payment activity:

Performing

Nonperforming

Total

December 3 l, 2015:

Grade:

Pass

Special mention

Substandard nonimpaired

Pass impaired

Special mention impaired

Sutstandard impaired

Total

Credit risk profile based on

payment activity:

Performing

Nonperforming

Total

Commercial

$ 26,r r0

2,603

$ 28.739

$ 26,136

2-603

$ 28,739

32.992

57

197

Real

Estate

$ 9s2,s46

5,975

4,420

5,458

5s8

2,291

$ 97t,248

$ 968,994

2.254

$ 971,248

$ 838,712

I,065

I,396

8,367

80

3,279

Cash

Secured

$ s4,880

$ s4,8E0

Consumer

and Other Total

$ t,034.e43

5,975

4.446

5,458

558

4.894

s 1,056,274

$ t,051,4r7

4.857

$ r,056,274

26

$ 1,407

$ 1.407

$

$ 54,8E0 $ 1,407

$ 54,8E0 $ 1.407

$ 51.803 $ 689

t6

$ 33,246 $ 852.899 $ sl,8r9 $ 689

$ 33.246 $ 847.987

4.912

$ 852,899

s sr.8r9 $ 689

$ 33,246 $ 5r,8t9 $

$ 924,196

t,t22
1,593

8.383

80

3,279

$ 938,653

689

$ 933,74r

$ 938,653
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NOTE 6: LOANS RECEwABLE - continucd

The following table sets forth information regarding the delinquencies within the loan portfolio (excluding nonaccrual loans) as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Recorded

90 Days Investment

30-89 Days and Total Total .90 Days and

PastDue Greater Past Due Cunent Loans Still Accruing

t,872

$ 5,655 $ 1,872

The following table sets forth information regarding the nonaccrual status within the loan portfolio as of December 3 l, 2016 and
2015:

December I l, 20 I 6:

Commercial

Real estate

Cash secured

Consumer and other

Total

Decemberll,20l5:

Commercial

Real estate

Cash secured

Consumer and other

Total

Commercia-l

Real estate

Total

$

6,251

t0

35

$ 6,296

$33
5.580

4

38

$

$-
7,429

t0

35

$ 7A74

s33
.1,452

4

38

$ 7,527

$ 26,t36

962.743

54,870

1.372

$ r,045,r21

$ 28,739

97t,248

54,880

1.407

$ r,056,274

s 33,2 t3

839,367

5 r,815

651

$ 925,046

20t6

$ 2,603

t-076

$ 3,579

$ 33,246

849,859

51.819

6E9

$ 935,613

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable thal the Company will be unable to
collect all amounts due from the borrower in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan. Impaired loans include
nonperfonning loans, but also include loans modified in troubled debt restructurings when mncessions have been $anted to
borrowers experiencing financial diffrculties. These concessions could include a reduction in the interest rate on the [oan. payment
extensions, forgiveness of principal, forbearance, or other actions intended to maximize collection. No significant intercst income
was remgnized on a cash basis on impaired loans in the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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Benorte USA Corporation and Subaidiarics

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31,2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

NOTE 6: LOANS RECEIYABLE - continucd

The total of troubled debt restructurings included in impaired loans was $7,373 and $8,702 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. Ttre following table sets forth information regarding modifications within the loan porffolio during the years ended

December 31,2016 and 201 5:

Number

Pro,Modification Post-Modification

Outstandinq Oustandine

Recorded lnvestment

1,424 $ l,o4

1,459

December 31, 2016:

Troubled debt restructuring:

Real estate

Troubled debt restructurings that

subsequently defaulted - real estate

December3l,2015:

Tmubled debt restnrcruring:

Real estate

Cash secured

Troubled debt restructurings that

zubsequently defaulted' real estate

5

2$

s8

I
$781

l6

76t
t6

3 203

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had no commitments to lend additional funds to customers with loans classified
as TDRs.

Loans are granted to directors and officers of the Company in the ordinary course of business. Such loans are made in accordance
with policies established for all loans of the Company, exc€pt that directors, officers, and employees may be eligible to receive
discounts on loan origination costs.

Loans receivable from directors and senior ofticers ofthe Company at Dec€mber 31,2016 and 2015, was $6,678 and $8,233,
respectively. During the years ended December 3l,2016 and 2015, total principal additions amounted to $l7l and $888.
respectively, and total principal reductions amounted to $1,726 and $620, respectively. Interest income from these loans was $349
and $36 1 flor the years ended December 31,2016 urd20l5, respectively.
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NOTE 7: PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT (continuing and discontinued operations)

A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation of premises and equipment at December 31,2016 and 2015, is as follows:

2016 2015

land, building and improvements

Fumiture, fixtures and equipment

Vehicles

Construction in progress

Software development costs

Total premises and equipment

Accumulated depreciation

Total premises and equipment - net of

accumulated depreciation

Depreciation expense

$

Continuing

Ooerations

Dscontinued

Ooerations

Continuing

Operations

Discontinued

Operations

Estimated

Useful Life

l0 - 40 yean

3-5yean

3-5yean

N/A

l0 yean

t85 $ 45.897

r 8,595

257

3lt

185 $ 45,565

r8.489

317

784

S

1,636

7,456

|,2't7

(7-054)

65.060

(29- I 39)

J,267

6.251

9.705

(6-296)

65, I 55

(28.1 80)

s 4,223

$ 749

$ 35,921

$ 2,473

s 3,409

s 3.222

$ 36,975

$ 1,064

NOTE 8: ALTERNATM FUI\IDING SOT RCES (discontinucd operations)

The Company has a line ofcredit totaling $15,000 for federal funds purchased. The line is unsecured and expired in February
2017. The Company renewed the line of credit upon expintion with no change in terms or a.mount. The new line of credit expires
in February 201 8. The line ofcredit was not drawn upon ttrough the subsequent event dab.

TheBankhasacreditfacilitywithabankthatallowstheBanktoborrowasmuchas95%oof highqualityunpledgedsecurities.
Ttis facility provides for both overnight and term funding. The Bank's investment policy provides that the Bank maintains a ratio
of securitieVtotal deposits of 20Yo which will provide availability when needed in a liquidity event. In order to support this
facility, the Bank has an arrangement with a bank to hold these securities when needed for pledging.

NOTE 9: REVOLVTNC LINE OF CR"EDIT (continuing opcretions)

The Company entered into a $5,500 revolving line of credit with a banh of which $5,107 and $3,350 was funded at December 3 I,
2016 and 2015, respectively. Advances on the credit line are payable on demand and carry an interest rate of Wells Fargo prime.
less .57o (currently 3.25W. The credit line is secured by a letter of credit fiom Banco Mercantil (See also Note 23). The Company
was in compliance with all debt covenants in the revolving line of credit as of December 31,2016 and 2015.
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NOTE l0: DEPOSITS (discontinued opcrations)

The weighted-average costoffunds related to deposits was 0.33% at both December 31,2016 and20l5.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the scheduled maturities of time deposits, including public fund deposits, are as follows:

Within one year

Onc to two years

Two to three years

Three to four years

Four to five years

Thereafter

NOW, money market, and savings

Certificates ofdeposit

Certificates ofldeposit - public funds

NOW - money market public funds

Total

2016

$ 255,E54

80,706

48,433

I t,867

2.164

2015

$ 337,950

il,553
42,5s3

10.255

7,1 85

200

Total $ 399,024 S 462,696

lnterest expense for the years ended December 31. 2016 and 2015 on deposits are summarized as follorvs:

2016 2015

$ 46t
2,862

443

4g

226

5,630

477

245

$

$ 4,230 $ 6,s7E

The Company held $279,191 and $333,444 in time deposit accounts that were in excess of$250 at December 31. 2016 and 2015

respectively.

Al December 31,2016 and 2015, the Company reclassified $234 and $222, respectively, in overdrawn deposits as loans.

Directors'andseniorofficers'depositaccountsatDecember3l,20l6and20l5,were$8,735and$7.l56,respectively. Brokered
deposits included in total deposits amounted to $3.184 and $3,178 at December 31,2016 and 2015, resp€ctively.

NOTE l1: ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOMf, LOAN BATYK (FHLB) (discontinued opcrations)

Short term borrowings of $60.000 represent advances from FHLB as of December 31. 2016. There were no borrowings
outstanding from the FHLB at December 31,2015. The Company paid $71 in interest expense on advances from the FHLB
during the year ended December 31,2016. The Company paid no interest on advances from FHLB in the year ended December
31,2015.

Under these agreements with the FHLB, the Company had unused lines of credit amounting to $380,621 and $432,886 at

December3l,20l6and20l5,respectively. AsofDecember3l,2O16and2015,theCompanyhad$956,012and$849,907in
loans pledgd respectively.
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NOTE I 2: SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES (continuing operations)

In April 20M, INBFC formed Trust [, a trust formed under the laws of the state of Delaware, which issued $10,000 of trust
prefened securities (the'lrust preferred securities ofTrust I") and $310 in common stock. These securities represent preferred
beneficial interests in the assets ofTrust l. Trust I used the proceeds ofthe offering ofthe trust preferred securilies ofTrust I to
purchase $10,310 of three-month London lnterBank Offered Rates (LIBOR), phx 2.72Yo (currently 3.607o) junior subordinated
defenable interest debentures (the "debentures of Trust l") issued by INBFC. Distributions of interest are due quarterly. The
debentures of Trus I will mature on April t5.2039, and are redeemable in whole or in part at the option of the Company at any

time after April 15, 2009. with the approval of the Federal Reserve Board and in whole at any time upon the occrrrrence of certain
events affecting their tax or regulatory capital featment. The trust preferred securities ol Trust I will be subject to mandatory
redemption if certain events occur, including a change in the tax status, a change in Trust I's status under the Investment
Company Act ol I 940, or regulatory capital treatment of the trust preferred securities of Tnrst t.

ln May 2004, INBFC formed Trust [I, a trust formed under the laws of th€ state of Delaware. which issued $10,000 of trust
preferred securities (the'trust preferred securities ofTrust II") and $3l0 in common stock These securities represent prelerred
beneficial interests in the assets ofTrust ll. Trust II usedthe proceeds ofthe oftbring o[the trust preferred securities ofTrust Il to
purchase $10,310 of three-month LIBOR, plus2.75o/o (currently 3.63%) junior subordinated defenable interest debentures (the

"debentures of Trust II") issued by INBFC. Distributions of interest are due quarterly. The debentures of Trust [I will mature on
Jul1, 23, 2034, and are redeemable in whole or in part at the option of the Company at any time after July 23,2009, with the

approval of the Federal Reserve Board and in whole at any time upon the occurrenoe of certain events affecting their tax or
regulatory capital treatment. Thetrust preferred securities of Trust Il will be subjectto mandatory redemption if certain events

occur, including a change in the tax status, a change in Trust II's status under the Investment Company Act of 1940, or regulatory
capital heatment of the trust prefened securities of Trust Il. The obligations of INBFC are on the same terrns as Trust I and Trust
ll's obligations.

For the years ended December 31,2016 and 2015, interest expense on the subordinated debentures was $715 and $631,
respectively. Subordinated debt may be included in regulatory Tier I capital subject to a limitation that such amounts not exceed

25%"of Tier I capital. The remainder of subordinated debt is included in Tier II capital. There is no limitation for inclusion of
subordinated dett in total risk-based capital an4 as such, all subordinated debt was included in total risk-based capital.

NOTE l3: TNCOME TAXES (continuing and discontinued operations)

Allocation offederal and state income taxes between cunent and defened portions for the years ended December 31. 2016 and

2015 is as follows:

2016 2015

Conlinuing

Current federal income hx expense

Culrent state income tax expense

Defened state income tax expense (benefit)

Deftned federal income tax expense

Total

S

OoerationsOperations

62J

946

59'.l

Discontinued

Operations

$ 6,092

IO

12

2.3t6

$ 8,430

Continuing

Ooerations

$ 304

641

(l-55)

t.048

$ r,838

Discontinued

$ 7.015

56

4

248

s I,79r $ 7,6q8

ln 2016 income hx expense differs from the statutory tax rate times the prcto( Ioss because of the nondeductibility of the goodlvill
impairment charge.
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NOTE 13: INCOME TAXES - continucd

The components of the net deferred tax asset at December 3 l, 2016 and 201 5 are as follows:

2016 201 5

Deferred trx Essea:

Loans

Ddened compensation

Foreclosed asscts

Losses on sales ofloans and foreclosed assets

Unrealized loss on securities available for sale

State defsrred t8x assels

Other, net

Tohl defened tBx assets

Def€rred tu liabilities:

Premises rnd equipment

Intatrgible assets

FHLB stock dividends

Other

Total deftned tor liabilitie,s

$

Continuing

Operations

20

l8

38

123'l

105

38

lJ80

$ (r,342)

Discontinued

Ooerations

$ s.929

49

27t
3,903

2,859

t6

37

l3-064

2,55t
2,034

4.814

$ E,250

Continuing

Ooeratioos

$ t5

7l

E6

t,041

106

33

l-180

$ ( 1,094)

Discontinued

Operstions

$ 5,610

457

154

4,950

2,829

28

6

t5-234

2,$9
l,820

227

4.686

$ 10,s48Defened tax assel (liability). net

Prior to 2015, the Company had established a valuation allowanoe agains a deferred tax benefit related to a state net operating
loss that it betieved was tikely not to be realized. This net operating loss expired in 2015 without being utilized and the
corresponding valuation allowance was extinguished-
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NOTE l4: LEGAL CONTINGENCIES (discontinued operations)

Beginning in 2006, the Banlq along with other financial institutions, participated in a prepaid debit card progruun with a third
party provider (NetSpend). An alleged discrepancy in the Netspend accounts held at the Bank was discovered in 2009. To resolve
the alleged discrepanry, a settlement agreement and release was reached in May 2009 between NetSpend and the Bank in which
the Bank hanslerred approximately $40 million to NetSpend and another participating financial institution. In June 201 l, after
the settlement agreement was reached, NetSpend alleged an approximate $10.5 million shorrfall in the accounts held at the Bank.
On June 13,2012, the Bank filed suit against NetSpend seeking injunctive relief to protect the Bank frorn NetSpend overdrawing
ils accounts and also to terminate the Bank's involvement with the prepaid debit card program. NetSpend and the Bank filed
cross motions for summary judgment based on mufual releases contained in a 20 l0 amendment to their goveming agreement. In
February 2013, NetSpend advanced approximately $10.5 million to close the accounts held at the Bank and the Bank terminated
its participation in the program. On January 24,2014, a state district court ganted a partial summary judgment on the motion
fited by NetSpend tbr reimbursement by INB of the S10.5 million and denied the motion requested by the Bank. Among other
things, the court ruled that the Bank must pay NetSpend approximately $10.5 million plus interest. On January 28,2016. the triat
court denied INB's request that it reconsider its previous ruling and signed an order of final judgment making the court's original
order against INB flrnal, with the total amount becoming approximately $12.5 million, including interest. It is the opinion of
management and outside counsel for the Bank that it is probable the ruling will be overturned on appeal due to the following:

The ruting grants relief beyond which NetSpend requested in its motion and beyond which NetSpend is entitled,
The court must resolve multiple legal and factual issues before the court can determine a liability for the $10.5 million
award, ifany, and.
NetSpend's motion for partial summary judgment is based on a mutual release dated September 24,2010. However,
NetSpend had continuing obligations under the goveming contract that continued until the program was transfened in
February 2013. which included managing the program and reconciling the accounts on a daily basis. The
nonperformance of these continuing obligalions led to rhe allegation of the approximate $10.5 million shortfall. This
allegalion is a breach of a previous settlement between the Bank and NetSpend reached in May 2009 and the
September 24,2010 re lease belween the parties. Such claims should not have been released by the award on summary
judgment filed by NetSpend.

Based on the assessment of outside counsel and management's opinion olthe probable likelihood of overturning the award on
appeal, the Bank has not recorded a liability for these contingencies in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Company is involved in various other legal proceedings in the normal course of business, which in the opinion of
management, will have no material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 15: STIPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continuing and discontinued operations)

Supplemental cash flow information for the years ended December 3 l. 201 6 and 2015 is as follows:

20t6 2015

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash paid during the year for intcrest

Cash paid during the year for income taxes

Continuing

Ooeralions

Disontinued

Ooerations

Continuing

Operations

Disontinued

Operations

6.781

5,6 l3

853

1,586

$$ 4.3 l3
7,057

765

r,560

$

Non-Cash Investing Activities:

Decrease in market

value ofsecurities available for sale

Loans made to lacilitate sales offoreclosed real estate

Real estate acquired in foreclosurc

Transfervreclass to other real estate owned

( 85)

2,259

4,620

(1,135)

5,387

2,797

298
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NOTE 16: REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (discontinued opcrations)

The Company and the Bank are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies. Capital
adequacy guidelines and prompt corrective action regulations, involve quantitative measures ofassets, liabilities, and certain off-
balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Capltal amounts and classifications are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. Failure to meet capital
requirements can initiate regulatory action. The final rules implementing Basel Comminee on Banking Supervision's capital
guidelines for U.S. hanks (Basel III rules) became effective for the Company and the Bank on January 1,2015 with full
compliance of the requirements being phased ln over a multi-year schedule, and fully phased in by January 1,2019. The net
unrealized gain or loss on available for sale securities is not included in computing regulatory capital. Management believes as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company and the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

hompt corrective action regulations tbr banking institutions provide five classifications: well capitalized, adeguately capitalized,
undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized although these terms are not used to represent
overall financial condition. lf adequately capitalized, regulatory approval is required to accept brokered deposits. If
undercapitalized, capital distributions are limite4 as is asset growth and expansiorl and capital restoration plans are required. At
December 31. 2016, the most recent regulatory notifications categorized the Bank as well-capitalized under the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have
changed the Bank's category.

Additionally, Basel tll added a z.syo"capital conservation buffer" which was designed for bank holding companies and banking
institutions to absorb losses during periods oleconomic stress. The implementation of the capital conservation buffer began on
January l, 2016 at the 0.625%o level and will be phased in over a four-year period (increasing by 0.625% on each subsequent
January l, until it reaches 2.5o/oon January l,2019). Bank holding companies and banking institutions with capital ratios below
the minimum for capital adequacy purposes plus the capita.l conservation buffer will face constraints on dividends. equit-v"

repurchases and executive cornpensalion relative to the amount ofthe shortfall.
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NOIE 16: REGT LATOR,Y CAPITAL REQI-IIREMENTS (continucd)

Actual and required capital amounts and ratios at Decembsr 31,2016 and 2015 are presented below (in thousands):

Actual
Amount Ratio

Adeouagv Purpos€s

Amount Ratio
Conservation Buffer

Amount Ratio
Actiou Provisions

Amoult Ratio
flecember3l,2016:

Total capital to risk
weighted assets

Company
Bank

Tior I (core) capital to
risk weighted assets

Cornpany
Bank

Common Tier I (CETI)
Company
Bank

Tier I (core) capital to
average a$ets

Company
Bank

December 3 l, 201 5:

Total capital to risk
weighted assets

Company
Bank

Tier I (core) capital to
risk weigfited assets

Company
Bank

Commoo Tier I (CETI)
Company
Bank

Tier I (core) capital to
average asseB

Company
Bank

$ 253,555
263.032

218,996
248,533

238,996
24t,533

338.996
24E,533

129,t69
242,717

216,371
229,788

2t6,371
226,7E8

216,371
229,7t8

22.Oo/o

22..gYo

20.7%
21.60/o

20.?o/o

2l.6Yo

l4.Oo/o

14.4o/o

22.5o/o

2!.8o/o

21.3o/o

?2.60/o

2l.1o/o

22.60/o

l4.2yio

l4.gYo

$ 92,3e7
91,938

69,298
68,954

st,973
51,715

68,274
69,034

El,4 tt
8l,429

6 I,063
61,071

45,797
45,803

60,943
61,746

E.OVo

SOYo

6.Oo/o

6.OYo

4.5%
4.5o/o

4.Oo/o

4.Oo/o

E.Oo/o

t.OYo

6 0o/"

6.Oo/o

4.5o/"

4.s%

4-Oo/o

4.Oo/o

$ e9.405
99,t21

76,490
76.136

J9,t 7l
5t,t98

68,274
69,034

8.6250/o

8.6250/o

6.6250/o

6-6250/o

5.l25%o

5.125o/o

4.000o/o

4.OO0o/o

NA
I14,923

NA
91,938

NA
74,700

86,292

NA
l0l -785

NA
8l,428

NA
66,160

NA
77.182

NA
lo oyo

8.Oo/o

6.5o/s

NA
5.OYo

NA
lO.Oo/o

NA
6 5o/o

6.s%o

5.Oo/o

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NOTE 17: LTMITATIONS ON DISTRIBUTIONS OF CAPITAL (discontinued operations)

At December 31,2016, the Bank's balance sheet rcflected an accumulstod deficit of $49,583. Accordingly, under federa.l banking
law, the Bank is precluded from declaring any distribution from equity capital without prior rcgulatory approval.
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NOTE lt: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continuing and discontinued operations)

Continuing operations

Uniteller maintains a 401(k) profit-sharing plan for all eligible employees. Uniteller matches 50% of the employees' contribution
up to the ltrsl 6Vo of the employees' compensation. The amount of profit-sharing plan cos recognized for the year ended

December 3 l, 20 I 6 and 20 I 5 was $27 and $39, respectively.

Discontinucd operations

Effective January I, 1991, the Bank adopted a Seclion 401(k) contributory plan (the 401(k) Plan) for the benefit of all ofthe
Bank's employees u'ho elect to participate. The 401(k) Plan is available to all regular employees who meet certain requirements
as to length of service and legal age requirements. An employee may conhibute a perc€nta8e of their covered compensation to the
401(k) Plan according to TNBFC plan program. Genera.lly, covered compensation is all compensation paid to an employee for
employee services rendered, including 401(k) Plan salary reductions. The Bank provides supplemental matching contributions to
the plan on behalfofthe participants, and pays some ofthe 401(k) Plan expenses. The 401(k) Plan contract states the Bank will
nratch 507o of employees' contributions up to 60/o of the employees' compensation, and up to allowable Intemal Revenue Service
limits. For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank's match totaled $691 and $263, respectively.

NOTE l9: F1NANCIAL INSTRIIMENTS AND OFF-BAI,ANCE-SHEET ACTTVITIES (discootioued operations)

All financial instruments held or issued by the Company are held or issued for purposes other than trading. In the ordinary course
of business, the Company enters into off-balance+heet frnancial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit and

forward delivery commitments for the sale of whole loans to the secondary market.

Commitmed$ to BAend Crcdit

ln response to marketplace demands, the Company routinely makes commitments to extend credit for fixed rate and variable rate
loans with or \^,ithout rate-lock guarantees. When rate-lock guarant€es are made to customers. the Company becomes subiect to
market risk fbr changes in interest rates that occur between the rate-lock dare and the date that a firm commitment to purchase the
loan is made by a secondary market investor.

Generally, as interest rates increase, the market value of the loan commitment goes down. The opposite effect takes place when
interest rates decline.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as the borrower satisfies the Company's underuriting
standards and related provisions of the bonowing agreements. Commitments generally have f'ixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.

The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitmenls to extend credit as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.
Collateral is required for substantially all loans, and normally consists ofreal property. The Company's experience has been that
substantially all loan commitments are completed or terminated by the borrower u'ithin 3 to 12 months.

The Company has lines of credit representing credit risk of approxirnately $66.M7 and $313,338 at December 31, 2016 and 2015.
respectively, of which appr<lximately $40.929 and $173,597 had been drawn al December 31,2016 and 2015. respectively. The
notional amount of the Company's commitments to extend credit at fixed and variable interest rates was approximately $ 146,837

and $145,740 al December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Company has letters ofcredit issued representing credit risk of
approximately $2.232 nd $824 at December 3 I , 20 16 and 20 I 5. respectively.

Derivative Loan Co mnilments

Mortgage loan commitments are referred to as derivative loan commitments if the loan that will result from exercise of the
commitrnent will be held for sale upon fi.urding. The Company enters into commitments to t'und residential mortgage loans at
specified times in the fluture, with the intention that these loans wi]l subsequently be sold in the secondary market. A mortgage
loan commitment binds the Company to lend funds to a potential borrower at a specified interest rate and within a specified
period of time, generally up to 60 days after inception of the rate [ock.
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NOTE I9: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACTMTIES (discontinued operations)

Outstanding derivative loan commitrnents expose the Company to the risk that the price of the loans arising from exercise of the
loan commitment might decline fiom inception of the rate lock to funding of the loan due to increases in mortgage interest rates.
Ifinterest rates increase, the value ofthese loan commitments decreases. Conversely. ifinterest rates decrease, the value ofthese
loan commitments increases. The notional amount of interest rate lock commitments was $1.974 and $978 at December 31. 2016
and 2015, respectively. The fair value of such commitments was insignificant.

The Company has no other off-balance-sheet arangements or transactions wlth unconsolidated, special pupos€ entities that
would expose the Company to liability that is not reflected on the face of the consolldated financia.l statements.

NOTE 20: LEASES (continuing and discontinued operations)

The Company leases space and equipment under operating leases expiring in various years through 2026. Future minimum rental
payments under noncancelable operating [eases having remaining terms in excess ofone year as ofDecember 31, 2016, are as

follows:

Years ended Dersember 3l
2017
201 E

20t9
2020
2021

Thereafler

Total

Years ended December 3 I,

20t7
201 8

20t9
2020

202t
Thereafter

Total

Less: amount anributable to interest

Toal

Continuing
Ooerations

Discontinued
Ooerations

s 682

654
535

485

458

2;t33

$ 5,s47

$ 230
115

t73
t16
136

102

$ 9s2

Lease expense for the years ended December 3 l. 2016 and 201 5 was $854 and $860, respectively.

In addition. the Company has acquired equipment undor the provisions of long-term capital leases. For financial reporting
purposes, minimum lease payments relating to the equipment have been capitalized and included in equipment on the
consolidated balance sheets. The leased equipment under capital leases have a carrying cost of $128 and $465 at December 31,
2016 and 2015. Amortization of the leased equipment is included in depreciation expense. The following is a schedule of future
minimum lease payments under the capital leases:

Continuing

Ooerations

Discountinued

Ooerations

$$ t52
93

- 245

---------------- (22\

s-$223
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NOTE 2l: FAIR VALUE DISCLOSIIRES (continuing and discontinued operations)

FASB ASC Topic 820 requires the use ofvaluation techniques that arc consistent with the market approactq the income approach,
and/or the cost approach. The market approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions
involving identical or comparable assets and liabilities. The income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts,
such as cash flows or eamings, to a single present amount on a discounted basis. The cost approach is based on the alnount that
currently would be required to replace the service capacity ofan asset (replacement costs).

Valuation techniques should be consistently applied. Inputs to valuation techniques refer to the assumptiorrs that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. lnputs may be observable, meaning those that reflect the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from independent sourc€s,
or unobservable. meaning those that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best infbrmation available in the circumstances. In that regard.
FASB ASC Topic 820 establishes a thir value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs.

The tair value hierarchy is as follows

Level I Inputs - Unadjusted quoted prices ln active markets flor identical ass€ts or liabilities that the reporting entity has the
ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 Inputs - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Lrvel I that are observable for the asset or liability. either directly or
indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in aaive markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (for
example. interest rates. volatilities, prcpayment speeds, loss severities, credit risks. and default rates). or lnputs that are derived
principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.

kvel 3 Inputs - Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions that market participants would use in
pricing the assets or liabilities.

A description o[ the va.luation rnethodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value. as well as the general
classification ofsuch instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set forth below.

ln general, fair value is based upon quoted market prices, where available. If such quoted market prices are not available, fair
value is based upon intemally developed models that primarily use. as inputs. observable rnarket-based parameters. Va.luation
adjustments may be made to ensure that financial instrumenls are recorded at fair value. While management b€lieves the
Company's valuation methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other market pafticipants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financia.l insfuments could result in a different estimate of
fair value at the reporting date.

SecuritiesAvailablefor Sa/e-SecuritiesclassifiedasavailableforsalearereportedatfairvalueutilizingLevel landLevel 2

inputs. For these securities, the Company obtains fair value measurements from an independent pricing service. 'Ihe fair value
measurements consider observable data that may include dealer quotes, market spreads, cash flows. the U. S. Treasury yield
curve, live bading levels, trade execution dat4 market consensus prepayments speeds, credit information, and the bond's terms
and conditions. among other things.

lmpaired Loans - lmpaired loars are reported at the fair value of the underlying collateral if repayment is expected solely lrom
the collateral. Collateral values are estimated using Level 3 inputs based on internally customized discounting criteria.

Foreclosed Real Esrate Heldfor Sale - Foreclosed real eslate held for sale is reported at fair value less estimated costs to dispose
ofthe property using Level 2 inputs. The fair values are determined by real estate appraisals using valuation techniques consistent
with the market approach using recent sales of comparable properties. In cases where such inputs are unobservable, the balance is

rel'lected within the Level 3 hierarchy.
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NOTE 2l: FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES - continucd

The following table summarizes financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, segregated by the level ofthe valuation inputs rvithin the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure
fair value:

l-,evel 2

lnDuts

!-w.

l-evel l
Itrpuls

Total Fair

Value

As of Deconber 31, 20 16

Securitkx avaitqhh for ss]e

,As of December 31. 2015

Securities available for sab

s 299,6 t2

s415,828$-$435,828

s

s

Certain financial and nonfinancial assets are measured at fair value on a noruecurring basis: that is, the instruments are not
measured at fair value on an ongoing basis, but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances (for example, when
there is evidence of impairment).

The following table summarizes financial assets and nonfinancial assets, measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of
December 31. 2016 and 2015, segregated by the level ofthe valuation inputs withln the falr value hierarchy utilized to measure
fair value:

Level I

lnDuts

Level 2

lnouts
Level 3

lnputs
Total Fair

Value
As ofDecember 31,2016

Financial assets - impaired loans

Nonfinancial assets - foreclosed assets 3,506
$ r 0,670 $ l 0,670

3,506

As ofDecember 3 l, 20 I 5

Financial assets - impaired loans
Nonfinancial assets - foreclosed assets

|.634
3,898

Dtning the years ended December 3 l, 20 16 and 20 I 5, certain impaired loans were remeasured and reported at fair value through a
specific valuation allowance allocation of the allowance for possible loan losses based upon the fair value of the underlying
collateral. For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. impaired loans with a carrying value of $10,910 and $11,742,
respectively, wete reduced by specific valuation allowanc€ allocations totating $2,t0 and $108, respectively, to a total reported thir
value of$10.670 and $l 1.634, respectively. based on collateral valuations utilizing Level 3 valuation inputs.

Foreclosed assets are valued at the time the loan is foreclosed upon and the asset is transflerred to other real estate owned. The
value is based primarily on third-party appraisals, less estimated costs to sell. Appraisals based upon comparable sales result in a

Level 2 classification while appraisals based upon expected cash flows of the property resuh in a Level 3 classification. The
appraisals are generally discounted based on management's historical knowledge. changes in market conditions from the time of
valuatioq and,/or management's expertise and knowledge of the customer and customer's business. Other real estate owned is

reviewed and evalualed on at least an annual basis for additional impairment and adjusted accordingly, based on the same factors
identified above. During the years ended December 31. 2016 and 2015, additional write-downs ofvaluation on real estate owned
of$336 and $466, respectively, were recorded.

$$

t 1,634

3.898
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NOTE 21: FAIR VALT E DISCLOSURES - continued

Quantitative Information about Significant Unobservable Inputs Used in Level 3 Fair Value Measurements - The following table
represents the Company's Level 3 financial assets and liabilities. the valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of those
financial assets and liabilities, and the significant unobservable inputs and the range ofvalues for those inputs (in thousands):

Fat Vatrr at Prircipal Vaintbn Range ofsigiftafi
Decenfier 31,2016

10,670

Fat Vahr at

DecerDer 31. 201 5

11,742

Techirtr
Apprabal of
mhteral(l)

Primpal Vahntbn

Tectnilw

Apprabal of
colhteral (l )

Silpi&am

Umbsenable Irpr(s

Apprahal

adjwtrrrt

Stpiftad
Umbssrvabb Imlns

Appraisal

adjlatsrEnt

Lerlt Vahrs

lG307o

Rarye ofSigniftan

Irpd VahEs

tu30%

$

$

( I ) Fair value is generally determined through independent appraisals of the underlying collateral, which generally ioclude
trvel 3 inputs which are not identifiable,
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NOTE 2l: FAIR VALUE DISCLOSI-IRES - continued

Those financial instruments not subject to the initial implementation of this guidance, are required to have their fair value
disclosed, both assets and liabilities recognized and not recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. for which it is practicable
to estimate fair value. Below is a table that summarlzes the fair values of all financial instruments of the Company at December
31, 2016 and 2015, followed by methods and assumptions that were used by the Company in estimating the fair value of the
classes of financial instruments not covered by FASB ASC Topic 820.

The estimated fair value amounts of financial instruments have been determined by the Company using available market
information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is rcquired to interpret data to develop the
estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company
could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a
material effect on the estimated fair value arnounts.

Carrying

Amount

Continued Discontinued

Ooerations Onerations

Total Estimated Fair Value

December3l,2016:

Financial assets;

Cash and cash equivalents

lnterest bearing deposits in bank
Securites available for sale

Loans held for sale

loans receivable. net

Accrued intenxt recei vable

Cash sunender value oflife insurance

Financial liabilities:

Deposits

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank

Revolvrng line of credit

Subordinated debentures

Accrued inl,erest payable

December 3 l. 201 5:

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Interest bearing deposits in banls

Securites available for sale

l.oans held for sale

lnans receilable, net

Accrued interest receivable

Cash sunender value oflife insurance

Financial liabilities:

Deposits

Revolving line of credrt

Subord inated debentures

Accrued interest payable

$ 3r,r42 $

5,1 07

20,562

150

3,350

20,559

128

I 8,375

121,516

299,612

r,686

I.M0.0rE

3.788

60,427

t,292,ts0
60,000

263

2i,9{J5

27,t24
435,828

1,t29

920,399

3.990

58,670

I,291,653

$

$

$

$

$

hvel I

lnouts

49,517

l2l,5 r 5

3,7E8

60,000

5,107

4r3

38.787

27,t74

3,990

3,350

367

Level 2

Inouts

299,612

l,686

435,828

1.t29

Level 3

lnouts

$ 15,754 $ $

1,037, r 5s

60,427

l. r 54,547

20,562

9r 8,213

58,670

I,2 t 1,695

20.559

239
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NOTE 2l: FAIR VALIIE DISCLOSURES - continued

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating the fair value of the above classes of financial
instruments.

Cash and Cash Equivalenls, Inlerest Beoring Deposits in Banl,s, ond Accrued Inlerest Receivable - The carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the relatively short period of time behveen the origination of these instruments and their expected
realization.

Securities Available for Sale - Pair value estimates are based on quoted market prices, if available. lf a quoted market price is not
available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar instuments.

Loans Held for Sale - These loans are reported at the lower of cost or fair value. Fair value is determined based on expected
proceeds of sales conkacts and commitrnents which are considered Level 2 inputs. At December 3 I , 2016. loans held for sale are
reported at cost, which approximates the fair value ofthe loans.

Loans Receivable - Fafi values are estimated by shatifling the loan portfolio into groups of loans with similar financid
characteristics. l,oans are s€gregated by type such as real estate, commerc.ial, and consumer, with each category further segmented
into fixed and adjustable rat€ interest terms.

For mortgage loans, the Company uses the secondary market rates in effect for loans that have similar characteristics. The fair
value ofother fixed rate loans is calculated by discounting scheduled cash flows through the anticipated maludties adjusted for
prcpayment estimates. Adjustabte interest rate loans are assumed to approximate fair value because they generally reprice within
the short term.

Fair values are adjusted lor credit risk based on assessment of risk identified with specific loans and risk adjustments on the
remaining portfolio based on credit-loss experience.

Assumptions regarding credit risk are judgmentally determined using specihc borrower informatioq intemal credit quality
analysis. and historical information on segmented loan categories for nonspecific borrowers.

Cash Surrender l/alue of Life Insurance - The carrying amount of bankowned life insurance is based on the cash surrender value
of the policies and is a reasonable estimate of fair value. Bank-owned life insurance fair value measurements utilize Level 3

inputs.

Deposits - The fair value of deposits with no stated matuity, such as checking passboot<, and money market, is equal to the
amounl payable on demand. The fair value oftime certificates ofdeposit is based on the discounted value ofconkactual cash
flows. The discount rate is estimated using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar maturities.

Subordinoted Debenlures -The fair value of subordinated debentures was calculated using the quoted market prices, if available.
lfquoted market prices are not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar subordinated debentures.
Subordinated debentures fair value measuements utilize l.evel 3 inputs.

Revolving Line oJ'Credit -The carrying amount of the line of credit approximates its fair value.

Accrued Interesl - The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximates their fair value.

affBalance-Sheel Inslruments - Fair values for off-balance-sheet, credit-related financial instrumenls are insignificant. These
instruments have no carrying value.

-40-



Banorte I-lSA Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31. 2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

NOTE 22: CONCENTRATIONS (discontinued operations)

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company's commercial real estate and residential real eslate loans approximated
5953,224 and $838,875 (90.1oloand 89.3%of total gross loans), respectively.

Generally, the Company's policy is to require collaleral on all loans. Collateral requirements for other financings vary depending
on the type ofcollateral involved the equity ofthe borrower or projecl and other subjective factors. Unsecured credit is granted
to business concerns and individuals only if supported by satisfactory current financial statements and sedit history.

The distribution of commitments to elitend credit approximates the distribution of loans outstanding. The Company, as a matter
of policy, does not extend credit in excess of is legal lending limit, calculated in acrcordance wlth applicable banking regulations,
to any single borrower or group of related borrowers.

The contractual amounts of credit-related financial instruments such as commitments to extend credit and letters of credit
represent the amounts ofpotential accounting loss should the contract be fully drawn upon. the customer default, and the value of
any existing collateral becomes worthless.

As of Decembet 3l,2016 and 2015, the Company has loans to Meican nationals totaling $65,736 and $69,410, respectively, of
which $24,572 and $25,070. resp€ctively, are secured by deposit accounts. As ofDecember 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has

deposits from Mexican nationals totaling $53 1,756 and $554,949, respectively.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015. the Company has noninterest bearing public fund deposits totaling $23.512 and Sl5.0l l.
respectively. As of December 31.2016 and 2015, the Company has interest bearing public fund deposits totaling $169.95 I and

$228,351, respectively. As of December 31,2016, interest bearing public funds included $140,255 in interest bearing checking
andmoneymarketaccounts,and$29,695incertificatesofdeposit. AsofDecember3l,2015,interestbearingpublicfunds
included $158,732 in interest bearing checking and money market accounts, and $69,619 in certificates ofdeposit.

NOTE 23: Rf,LATED.PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuing operations)

The Company signed a sewice agreement with Banco on April 25, 2012. which was amended in November 2012, November
2013. September 2014 and October 2015. Banorte, as a holding company, helps and/or assists Banco to control and watch over
its interests and ounership over Banorte USA subsidiaries. The services rendered include, but are not limited to: general
administratiorl regulatory and compliance management, accounting services, business development, reports to Banco, and
corporate govemance. This agreement remains in force for an indefinite term and can be terminated by written given notice of
each party. Banco paid a total of $1,045 and $1,055 in fees to the Company for the services rendered in the years ended
December 31,2016 and 2015, respcctively. The fee is reviewed annually and changes can be made with 90 day notice and
agreement of both parties.

At December 31,2016 and 2015. the Company has a $2,500 note payable due to Banco Mercantil at 4.260/o that is funded and
repaid on a monthly basis. This related party note payable has been classified as a long term liability in the accompanying
consolidatedbalancesheetsduetotheintentofthetwoparties. TotalinterestexpenseduringtheyearsendedDecember3l.20l6
and 20 I 5 for the note was $60 and $58. respectively.

Additionally, the Company has a line of credit with an independent bank in the amount of $5.500 (see Note 9). The line of credit
is secured by a letter of credit from Banco Mercantil. The Company is charged a monthly fee by Banco Mercantil in regard to
thisletterofcredit. DuringtheyearsendedDecember3l,20l6and20l5theCompanypaid$97and$96,respectively.infeesto
Banco Mercantil.

During 2016 and 2015, the Company paid Banco Mercantil $4,879 and $4,593, respectively, in commission fees for acting as a

paying agent processor.
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NOTE 24: CONDENSED PARENT COMPAIIIY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuing opcrations)

Set forth below is the condensed balance sheets as of December 31,2016 and 2015 of the Company together with the related
condensed statements of operations and cash flows for the years ended December 3 1 , 20 1 6 and 20 1 5.

Condensed Balance Sheets

2016 20 15

Assets

Cash and cash equivalenB
IntercompaDy receivable

Deferred tax asset

Federal income tax receivable
Investrnent in subsidiaries

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholde/s eouity
Federal income tax payable

Intercompany payable

Other liabilities
Shreholder's equity

Total liabilities and shareholder's equity

Other income

Equity in undistributed (loss) earnings ofsubsidiaries

Tota.l interest income

Salaries and employee benefits

Legal and professional

Other expense

Total noninterest exp€nse

(Loss) income before income taxes

Income tax expense

Net (loss) income

$$ 200
6l
t6

1,239
268.938

297

2,134

52

452.5U

s 270,4s4 $ 4ss,027

$ $ 2,037
I,l6E

r93
269.O93

$ 270,454 $ 455,027

4t5
452.s75

Condensed Statements of Operations

20t6

1,046
( I 83-459)

20r5

$ 1,055

l7-591

(182,4r3)

1.03 I

(1E3270) r 7.615

$ (r83,336) $ 17,607

$

728
t2t

E,646

781

218
6

8s7

I56
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